



WRE-TR-1792 (W)



DEPARTMENT OF DEFENCE

DEFENCE SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY ORGANISATION

WEAPONS RESEARCH ESTABLISHMENT

SALISBURY, SOUTH AUSTRALIA



TECHNICAL REPORT 1792 (W)

STABILITY ENHANCEMENT OF BOMB CONFIGURATIONS

M.L. ROBINSON





Approved for Public Release.

C

Commonwealth of Australia

MARCH 197

COPY No. 75

THE UNITED STATES NATIONAL TECHNICAL INFORMATION SERVICE IS AUTHORISED TO REPRODUCE AND SELL THIS REPORT

APPROVED

FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

ACCESSION for		
ATIA White Section	UNCLASSIFIED	
VNAKHOUNCED D	DEPARTMENT OF DEFENCE	AR-000-528
BT	DEFENCE SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY ORGANISATION	
BISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY CODES Bist. AVAIL. and/or SPEGIAL	WEAPONS RESEARCH ESTABLISHMENT	
A	9	
	TECHNICAL REPORT, 1792 (W)	
	(14) WRE-TR-1992(W	0/
6	7	
4	STABILITY ENHANCEMENT OF BOMB CONFIGURATIONS .	
	10 M.L./Robinson	
	(1) Mar 77 (2) 25p. DECON	D C
		24 1978
V	SUMMARY UUSU	SUUGU
Ine st configura to improv specific important tail of f fin roots designs o prone to cone angl impaired, complete Oil fl ing fin-r cylindric units usi designed performar canister out recou	Approved for Public Release	-
POSTAL ADD	RESS: The Director, Weapons Research Establishmen Box 2151, G.P.O., Adelaide, South Australia.	t, 5001
	UNCLASSIFIED 371 700	KB.

decurity classification of this page UNCLA	SSIFIED
DOCUMENT NUMBERS	2 SECURITY CLASSIFICATION
AR AR-000-528 Number:	a. Complete Document: Unclassified
Report Number: WRE-TR-1792(W)	b. Title in Isolation: Unclassified
Dther Numbers:	c. Summary in Isolation: Unclassified
3 TITLE STABILITY ENHANCEMENT OF	BOMB CONFIGURATIONS
4 PERSONAL AUTHOR(S):	5 DOCUMENT DATE:
M.L. Robinson	March 1977
	6 6.1 TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES 22
	6.2 NUMBER OF 3 REFERENCES:
7 7.1 CORPORATE AUTHOR(S):	8 REFERENCE NUMBERS
Weapons Research Establishment	a. Task: DST 76/118 b. Sponsoring RD73
7.2 DOCUMENT (WING) SERIES AND NUMBER Weapons Research and Development Wing TR-1792	9 COST CODE: 137903
10 IMPRINT (Publishing establishment):	11 COMPUTER PROGRAM(S)
Weapons Research Establishment	(Trite(s) and language(s))
12 RELEASE LIMITATIONS (of the document):	
Approved for Public Release	
12.0 OVERSEAS NO P.R. 1 A	BCDE

OCHMENT CONTROL DATA

	IMITATIONS (of	the information on these page	es):	
No limitation				
14 DESCRIPTORS: a. EJC Thesaurus Terms b. Non-Thesaurus Terms	Aerodynamic Bombs Stability Longitudina Fin stabili	configurations 1 stability zation		15 COSATI CO 1902 2004
16 LIBRARY LOCATIO	N CODES (for lib	raries listed in the distribution):	
SW SK SD AA	LA MG NL			
The static was examined i	longitudinal n wind tunne	stability of fin-st l tests with a view	abilized bomb to improving	configuratio
of the stabili indicated that radial-fin tai fin roots. A of radial fins fin roots for is then impair complete confi Oil flow st separation on afterbody betw maximum effici range. The p canister stabi to excessive f	zing tail of an importan l of fixed s t transonic l mounted on practical ta ed, resultin guration. udies showed boattailed s een the fins ency were de erformance o lity required in span.	a specific canister t factor in achievin pan is the avoidance Mach numbers, tradit a boattail are prone il-cone angles. Li g in reduced longitu that a successful m hapes was the use of . Two tail units u signed and tested in f these tails was hi ments were closely a	design. Th g maximum lif of flow sepa ional tail de to flow sepa ft efficiency dinal stabili eans of allev a cylindrica sing these de the transoni ghly satisfac pproached wit	e study has t from a ration at the signs consist ration at the of the tail ty for the iating fin-ro l or flared vices to achi c Mach number tory in that hout recourse

WRE-TR-1792(W)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Pag	e	NO.
1.	INTRODUCTION		1	
2.	EXPERIMENTAL DETAILS		1	
3.	AERODYNAMIC INVESTIGATION	1	-	4
	3.1 Force measurement	1	-	4
	3.2 Pressure measurement		4	
4.	DISCUSSION	4	-	5
	4.1 Alleviation of separation		4	
	4.2 Scale effect		5	
	4.3 Support interference		5	
	4.4 Drag		5	
	4.5 Practical application		5	
5.	CONCLUSIONS		6	
	NOTATION		7	
	REFERENCES		8	

LIST OF FIGURES

1. Canister configurations 2. C_N , C_m and X_{cp} variation with incidence, Mk 3 canister, $\phi = 0^{\circ}$ 3. C_N , C_m and X_{cp} variation with incidence, Mk 4 canister, M = 0.9, $\phi = 0^{\circ}$ 4. Upper surface oil flow patterns, Mk 6 canister, M = 0.8 5. C_N , C_m and X_{cp} variation with incidence, Mk 5 canister, $\phi = 0^{\circ}$ 6. C_N , C_m and X_{cp} variation with incidence, Mk 6 canister, $\phi = 0^{\circ}$ 7. Pressure distributions on afterbody of finless Mk 6 canister, $a = 0^{\circ}$

1. INTRODUCTION

The stabilizing tail of a bomb configuration must provide sufficient lift such that a satisfactory static margin is achieved throughout the operating The traditional design of a stabilizing tail consisting of incidence range. radial fins mounted on a boattail is prone to suffer from flow separation at the To achieve stability, the designer fin roots thus impairing lift efficiency. may then be obliged to increase the tail span or to adjust the centre of gravity forward by adding ballast to the vehicle nose. Obviously such solutions are inherently unsatisfactory, and also their implementation may not be possible because of operating constraints which impose a limit on fin span and restrict the centre of gravity to a specified range. Therefore, it is important that the maximum lift be obtained from a tail of given size, and to achieve optimum performance, flow separation at the fin roots must be suppressed as far as possible.

The problem of inadequate longitudinal stability arose in the early design phase of a W.R.E. canister development programme. The difficulty was later compounded by a requirement to reduce the fin span to the minimum possible dimension such that compatibility of the canister with existing bomb racks would be assured. The aerodynamic investigation which was undertaken to improve the performance of the stabilizing tail is given in this paper.

2. EXPERIMENTAL DETAILS

All the tests were carried out in the 0.36 m by 0.38 m slotted working section of wind tunnel S1 at the Aerospace Division of W.R.E. The tunnel is a continuousflow facility with provision for close control of Mach number and stagnation pressure. The models which were 52.45 mm in diameter were mounted on a five component balance measuring side force, normal force, rolling, pitching and yawing moments. An incidence-roll mechanism provided remote control of pitch and roll attitudes.

Geometric details of the canisters on which the wind tunnel models were based are given in figure 1. A transition band comprising two rows of 0.12 mm diameter glass spheres was attached to the nose of each model 20 mm from the nose tip. Sublimation tests showed that the transition band was effective in promoting a turbulent boundary layer on the body at angles of incidence not exceeding about 20° for the Reynolds number of the tests, namely 3.4 x 10^{5} based on body diameter.

The sting diameter at the model base was 0.23D where D is the model reference diameter. This corresponds to 65 per cent of the minimum base diameter of 0.35D pertaining to the Mk 3 and 4 canisters. The slightly tapering shank of the sting extended a minimum distance of 1.4D behind the base of the model before entering a sting shield. A small but undetermined degree of support interference is expected in the results, particularly for the Mk 4 series of canisters where a relatively bluff sting shield was used.

3. AERODYNAMIC INVESTIGATION

3.1 Force measurement

A definitive early configuration known as the Mk 3 canister is shown in figure 1(a) where all dimensions are in calibres. The canister is relatively short with a length to diameter ratio of 5.74, and the fin span varies from 1.50 to 1.62 calibre. The fin section is a modified double wedge and the leading edge sweepback is 30° . The specification required

a static margin $|\partial C_m/\partial C_N|$ at zero incidence of one calibre, with a centre of

- 2 -

gravity position situated at 2.375 calibre from the nose. Therefore, to achieve the specified stability, the distance of the centre of pressure position from the nose should be not less than 3.375 calibre or 59 per cent of the body length.

Force and moment tests on the body without fins showed that the centre of pressure was located roughly 6 calibre ahead of the nose at zero incidence. The short nose (length 0.94 calibre) with its forward centre of pressure and the aft location of the boattail were responsible for this large destabilizing effect.

Normal force, pitching moment and centre of pressure data for the Mk 3 canister at Mach numbers 0.6 and 0.9 are shown in figure 2. At zero incidence the centre of pressure was located 3.1 calibre from the nose at M = 0.6, and 3.0 calibre from the nose at M = 0.9. Therefore, the Mk 3 tail failed to meet the stability specification by a substantial margin. Further, at incidence angles in excess of about 13° , the slope of the pitching moment versus incidence curve fell away markedly, leading to an undesirable forward movement of the centre of pressure position and a reduced static margin.

Because the 1.62 calibre span tail created mounting problems on standard aircraft racks, an investigation was made with a greatly reduced tail span of 1.34 calibre. Although it was recognised that such a tail could not provide adequate stability with four fins, it was hoped that additional fins could be added to boost the performance. The Mk 4/4 canister with a fourfin tail unit is shown in figure 1(d), where the body shape is unchanged from the Mk 3 unit in figure 1(a). The fins of the Mk 4/4 tail incorporate a single-wedge section with a leading edge included angle of 14⁰ and a blunt trailing edge. The leading edge is swept back at 45° in an attempt to achieve a rearward centre of pressure position of the tail. Signs of potential trouble were first observed in oil flow patterns which showed fin root separation at low incidence. The separation increased markedly in extent on the upper (low pressure) surfaces of the lifting fins as incidence was increased.

Normal force, pitching moment and centre of pressure data for the Mk 4/4 configuration at a Mach number of 0.9 are shown in figure 3. The low pitching moment throughout the incidence range and resultant unsatisfactory centre of pressure position are clearly evident. The addition of four interdigitated fins to form the Mk 4/8 configuration shown in figure 1(e) improved the stability slightly at low incidence, but in the range above about 14° incidence, the stability was degraded significantly by the additional fins. Thus any gains due to increased lifting area were negated by fin interference effects and increased flow separations at the fin roots.

Close examination of oil flow patterns obtained on the Mk 4/4 configuration at an incidence of 8° revealed that on the low pressure surface of each lifting fin a separation line extended from about the 25 per cent root chord position to the trailing edge at an angle of about 7° to 8° to the axis of symmetry of the canister. To eliminate or at least attenuate the separation it was decided to insert a 7.5° semi-angle flare between the fin roots such that the intersection of the flare with the fin surfaces followed roughly the observed separation line at $a = 8^{\circ}$. This configuration designated Mk 4/8F is shown in figure 1(f). A precedent for this type of modification was noted in the M823 research store programme(ref.1,2) where a relatively small change in afterbody shape to relieve adverse pressure gradients produced a significant improvement in stability.

The addition of the flare to the Mk 4/8 canister was successful in significantly improving the stability of the canister throughout the incidence range as shown in figure 3. It seems, therefore, that the flare

was effective in suppressing separation throughout the transonic Mach number range since the centre of pressure position was almost independent of Mach number. Although the stability of the Mk 4/8F canister was well below specification with a static margin of 0.4 calibre only, this configuration was equally as successful as the best of a large number of 1.34 calibre span tail designs which were examined in the present investigation. Variations in fin chord, leading edge sweep, afterbody geometry and a number of minor modifications such as slotted fins were tested without materially improving on the Mk 4/8F configuration.

Consequent on the findings of this phase of the investigation, it was considered expedient to relax the fin span constraint to achieve adequate stability. Bearing in mind the compatibility of the canister with existing bomb racks, a minimum fin span consistent with stability was paramount.

Stability calculations showed that a fin span of 1.55 calibre could provide the necessary static margin throughout the subsonic and transonic Mach number ranges. It was shown that a canister with this fin span could be accommodated on standard bomb racks by using packing pieces. Two configurations were designed to conform to the 1.55 calibre span limitation, and these are shown in figure 1(b) and (c). The Mk 5 design uses a 7° semiangle flare between the fins to suppress separation, whereas the Mk 6 design uses a cylindrical body 0.525 calibre in diameter for the same purpose. To avoid fouling the bomb racks, the fins are cropped towards the rear. The fin section is a single-wedge with a leading edge included angle of 5° and a blunt trailing edge. The sweep-back angle of the leading edge is 30° .

Oil flow patterns obtained on the Mk 6 canister at a Mach number of 0.8 are shown in figure 4. In the range of incidence shown, there is no obvious evidence of axial flow separation in the fin root region, although the flow over the fins becomes markedly three-dimensional with increasing incidence.

Aerodynamic data obtained on the Mk 5 and 6 canisters are shown in figures 5 and 6, and the general levels of normal force and pitching moment show a marked improvement over the corresponding data of figures 2 and 3. Each configuration exhibits a highly satisfactory restoring pitching moment characteristic, indicating that the stabilizing tail is lifting efficiently in the incidence range 0° to 20° .

It is informative to compare the zero-incidence centre of pressure position and static margin $|\partial C_m/\partial C_N|$ of the Mk 3, 5 and 6 canisters, and the relevant data are given in the accompanying table.

Conf'n.	Mk 3		Mk 5		Mk 6	
м	x _{cp}		x _{cp}		x _{cp}	۱۹۲ ^۳ /۹۲ ^۷ ۱
0.6	3.10	0.72	3.28	0.90	3.31	0.93
0.9	3.00	0.62	3.27	0.89	3.25	0.87

o

Remembering that the tail span of the Mk 5 and 6 canisters is less than the maximum span of the Mk 3 canister, the improvement in static margin of the Mk 5 and 6 designs over the Mk 3 configuration of more than 40 per cent at M = 0.9 is noteworthy. A further point of interest is that the static margin of the Mk 5 and 6 canisters is degraded less by the increase in the Mach number from 0.6 to 0.9 than is the case of the boattailed Mk 3 design.

In terms of the originally specified one calibre static margin at zero incidence neither of the Mk 5 and 6 canister designs, each with a nominal 0.9 calibre static margin at zero incidence, fulfilled the requirement. However, the centre of pressure position moved rearward rapidly with increasing incidence such that at all incidence angles in excess of 5° , the centre of pressure position was located greater than one calibre aft of the centre of gravity location.

From the static stability viewpoint there was little to choose between the Mk 5 and 6 designs. However, the Mk 6 design was preferred for further development for reasons of structural simplicity and reduced base drag.

3.2 Pressure measurement

To verify the hypothesis that a region of favourable pressure gradient is produced by replacing the rear segment of a boattail with a cylindrical body, a limited programme of pressure measurement was undertaken. Three surface pressure holes were located on the cylindrical afterbody section of a finless version of the Mk 6 canister. Surface pressures were measured relative to tunnel static pressure by a 34 kPa range differential transducer incorporated in a Scanivalve pressure scanning system.

Experimental data so obtained are shown in figure 7, and the existence of a favourable pressure gradient over the full length of the cylindrical afterbody is confirmed. However, inviscid flow calculations by Haselgrove(ref.3) have shown that the cylindrical afterbody produces a region of increasing adverse pressure gradient on the boattail ahead of the boattail-cylinder junction. Computed pressure distributions are included in figure 7 where it is seen that the adverse gradient on the boattail-cylinder terminates at an axial position corresponding to 30 per cent of the fin root chord. Nevertheless, the dominant feature of the relevant pressure distributions in figure 7 is the net favourable gradient over the length of afterbody corresponding to the location of the fin root chord.

Since the pressure distribution due to added fins is superimposed on the already existing distribution on the afterbody, the severity of adverse pressure gradients over the rearmost 70 per cent of the upper surfaces of the lifting fins is reduced in the fin root region by the pre-existing favourable gradient. Therefore, the boundary layer in the vicinity of the fin roots is less likely to separate than would be the case for an unmodified boattail with its associated adverse pressure gradient throughout its length. The modified boattail arrangement should therefore support higher fin loadings and give increased lift, an observation which is well supported by the force measurements.

4. DISCUSSION

4.1 Alleviation of separation

Aerodynamic force and moment data obtained on the Mk 5 and 6 canisters have demonstrated the efficacy of the present technique of using a correctly proportioned cylindrical or flared afterbody between radial fins to alleviate flow separation at the fin roots. Results of pressure measurements have shown that the modified afterbody creates favourable aerodynamic interference between the fin and centrebody flows. It is reasoned that this favourable interference reduces the magnitude of the adverse pressure gradient on the inboard upper surfaces of the lifting fins and thus renders the boundary layer in the vicinity of the fin roots less prone to separation. The improved static stability of the Mk 5 and 6 canisters over that of the Mk 3 design highlights the importance of attached flow in the fin root region such that satisfactory lift loadings are maintained.

4.2 Scale effect

A brief comment is warranted on the applicability of the present findings to full scale flight conditions where the Reynolds number is typically an order of magnitude greater than that of the wind tunnel tests. Reasonable care was taken in the tests to ensure the development of a turbulent boundary layer on the body downstream of the transition band. Provided that the boundary layer is fully developed, the essential features of the layer including susceptibility to separation are relatively insensitive to Reynolds number. Furthermore, in attached flow the pressure distributions on the afterbodies are independent of Reynolds number to a first order since the displacement thickness is only weakly dependent on Reynolds number. Therefore, the findings made on the basis of the wind tunnel results are expected to be equally valid for the higher Reynolds numbers which are typical of flight conditions.

4.3 Support interference

Every effort was made to ensure that support interference in the wind tunnel tests was minimal (Section 2). Oil flow studies on the Mk 4/4 canister showed no evidence of separation directly attributable to the sting or its support. Nevertheless, the oil flow and force measurements have shown that the boundary layer on the afterbodies of the Mk 3, 4/4 and 4/8 canisters is subject to separation at the roots of the lifting fins. Unfavourable support interference would tend to exacerbate this condition, further degrading the lifting performance of the tail. It is therefore possible that the wind tunnel results on the Mk 3 and 4 configurations are unduly pessimistic in terms of longitudinal stability and that the performance gains achieved by the use of the cylindrical and flared afterbodies are then unduly optimistic. There is no question, however, that incipient separation conditions should be avoided, and so design modifications which promote attached flow are to be recommended.

4.4 Drag

No comparative measurements of the drag increment due to the afterbody modifications have been made. On an inviscid flow basis the base area increase over that of the standard boattail results in increased form drag because of the base drag contribution. However, if the afterbody simply replaces a region of separated flow, no increase in drag should result and possibly a reduction in drag may be achieved by a correctly proportioned afterbody. The drag increment due to the afterbody whether positive or negative is probably insignificant in terms of the total drag which is primarily due to skin friction at subsonic speeds and to form drag in the high transonic and supersonic speed ranges.

4.5 Practical application

Large numbers of stores stabilized by radial fins attached to boattails are in existence today, and it is likely that some designs suffer from varying degrees of flow separation at the fin roots. Under these conditions, static stability is degraded and dynamic stability may be adversely affected. In lieu of redesigning the tail unit of a deficient store, a simple modification would be the use of a correctly proportioned afterbody between the fins or fin root fairings to correct the flow problem and improve longitudinal stability.

5. CONCLUSIONS

- 6 -

A wind tunnel investigation of the static longitudinal stability of finstabilized bomb configurations has been made at transonic Mach numbers. The study revealed that fin-root separation was largely responsible for the poor performance of early designs of stabilizing tails incorporating radial fins mounted on a 7° 40' semi-angle boattail. A successful means of suppressing fin-root separation on boattailed shapes was the use of a cylindrical or flared afterbody inserted between the fins. Two tail units using these separationsuppression devices performed well, and canister stability requirements were closely approached without the use of excessive span.

NOTATION

с _N	normal force coefficient, (normal force)/QS
C _m	pitching moment coefficient about centre of gravity position 2.375 calibre from nose, (pitching moment)/QSD
C _p	pressure coefficient $(p - p_{st})/Q$
D	body diameter
М	Mach number
Q	dynamic pressure
S	reference area $\pi D^2/4$
X _a	distance downstream from boattail/afterbody junction in calibres
x _{cp}	distance of centre of pressure position from nose in calibres
р	pressure
^p st	free-stream static pressure
a	incidence angle
φ	roll angle

- 8 -

REFERENCES

No.	Author	Title
1	Rhodes, C.W. and Shannon, J.H.W.	"Results and Conclusions of the Joint R.A.E./ W.R.E. Research Programme on the Flight Dynamics and Ballistic Consistency of Freely Falling Missiles. Part 1 : Bombs Stabilized by Fixed Cruciform Fins". Australian Department of Supply, Report HSA 20, November 1965.
2	Secomb, D.	"Transonic Wind Tunnel Measurements of the Influence of Fin Section Profile on the Static Longitudinal Stability of a Low Drag Bomb". Australian Department of Supply, Note ARL/A.307, October 1968.
3	Haselgrove, M.K.	"Calculation of Pressure Distributions on Two Axisymmetric Boattailed Configurations". WRE-TR-1779(W), February 1977.



(a) Mk 3 - 4 fins-modified double wedge section



(b) Mk 5 - 4 fins-single wedge section



Figure 1. Canister configurations

WRE-TR-1792(W) Figure 1(d),(e) & (f)

NOTE : DIMENSIONS IN CALIBRES



(d) Mk 4/4 - 4 fins-single wedge section



(e) Mk 4/8 - 8 fins-single wedge section



(f) Mk 4/8F (with flare) - 8 fins-single
wedge section

Figure 1(Contd.). Canister configurations



and the second second

WRE-TR-1792(W) Figure 2









WRE-TR-1792(W) Figure 6



DISTRIBUTION

EXTERNAL	Copy No.		
In United Kingdom			
Defence Science and Technical Representative	1 - 2		
Royal Aircraft Establishment			
Library	3		
Aeronautical Department			
(Attention: Mr G. Brebner)	4		
Weapons Department			
(Attention: Mr E. Cane)	5		
Bedford			
(Attention: Dr J.E. Green)	6		
(Attention: Mr K.G. Winter)	7		
R.A.R.D.E.			
Library	8		
(Attention: Dr R. Fancett)	9		
National Lending Library of Science and Technology	10		
T.T.C.P. U.K. National Leader, Panel W-2	11 - 14	1	
Aeronautical Research Council	15		
Library, Royal Aeronautical Society	16		
C.A.A.R.C. Secretary	17		
The Royal Military College of Science, Department of Mathematics and Ballistics			
(Attention: Dr L. Pennelegion)	18		
Aircraft Research Association (Bedford)			
(Attention: Mr E. Carter)	19		
British Aircraft Corporation	20		
Hawker Siddeley Group	21		
Short Brothers, and Harland (Belfast)			
(Attention: Chief Aerodynamicist)	22		
In United States of America			
Counsellor, Defence Science, Washington	23 - 24	4	
Defence Research and Development Attache, Washington	25		
T.T.C.P. U.S. National Leader, Panel W-2	26 - 29	9	
Library, Air Force Armament Test Laboratory	30		
Arnold Engineering Development Center			
Library	31		
(Attention: Dr A. Norman)	32		

WRE-TR-1792(W)

	Ballistics Research Laboratory	
	Library	33
	(Attention: Dr C.H. Murphy)	34
	Library, Edgewood Arsenal	35
	N.A.S.A.	
	Ames Research Center	36
	Langley Research Center	37
	Lewis Research Center	38
	Marshall Space Flight Center	
	(Attention: Mr J. Heaman)	39
	Picatinny Arsenal	
	(Attention: Mr A. Loeb)	40
	Redstone Arsenal	
	(Attention: Mr R. Deep)	41
	U.S. Naval Ordnance Laboratory	
	(Attention: Mr S. Hastings)	42
	Library, U.S. Naval Ship Research and Development Center	43
	Library, U.S. Naval Weapons Center	44
	Library, U.S. Naval Weapons Laboratory	45
	Library, Wright-Patterson Air Force Base	46
	General Dynamics Corporation, Convair Division, San Diego	
	(Attention: Mr D. Cumming)	47
	Lockheed Missiles and Space Company, California	
	(Attention: Mr L.E. Ericsson)	48
In	Europe	
	A.G.A.R.D., Brussels	49
	D.V.L., Germany	50
	F.F.A., Sweden	51
	N.L.L., Holland	52
	O.N.E.R.A., France	53
T	Consta	
In	Canada D. D. E. V. Volcention	
	Attention: Mr. D. Solnoku)	
	(Attention: MFP. Somoky)	54
	library	
	(Attention: Mr. I. Ohman)	55
	TTCP Canadian National Leader Danal W 2	50
	1.1.C.F. Canadian National Leader, Fanel W-2	57 - 60

Copy No.

In	Australia		
	Chief Defence Scientist	61	
	Air Member for Technical Services	62	
	Director, Joint Intelligence Organisation	63	
	Defence Central Library	64 -	65
	Navy Scientific Adviser	66	
	Army Scientific Adviser	67	
	Air Force Scientific Adviser	68	
	Head, Defence Science and Technology Planning	69	
	Executive Controller, Australian Defence Scientific Service	70	
	Superintendent, Defence Science Administration	71	
	Assistant Secretary, Defence and Information Services (for microfilming)	72	
	Australian National Library	73	
	United Kingdom, for Ministry of Defence, Defence Research Information Centre	74	
	United States, for Department of Defense, Defense Documentation Center	75 -	87
	Canada, for Ministry of Defence, Defence Science Information Service	88	
	New Zealand, for Ministry of Defence	89	
	Controller, Service Laboratories and Trials	90	
	Superintendent, R.A.N. Research Laboratory	91	
	Head, Engineering Development Establishment	92	
	Defence Library, Campbell Park	93	
	Aeronautical Research Laboratories		
	Chief Superintendent	94	
	Superintendent, Aerodynamics Division	95	
	Superintendent, Mechanical Engineering Division	96	
	Library ·	97	
	Materials Research Laboratories		
	Chief Superintendent	98	
	Library	99	
INT	ERNAL		
	Director	100	
	Chief Superintendent, Weapons Research and Development Wing	101	
	Superintendent, Aerospace Division	102	
	Head, Ballistics Composite	103	

.

Copy No.

Principal Officer, Aerodynamic Research Group	104
Principal Officer, Dynamics Group	105
Principal Officer, Flight Research Group	106
Principal Officer, Ballistic Studies Group	107
Principal Officer, Field Experiments Group	108
Author	109 - 110
Library, W.K.E.	111 - 112
Library, Aerospace Division	113 - 114
Spares	115 - 134